
Summons to Meeting

Wednesday 20 December 2017

Development Panel
Tuesday 9 January 2018, 1.00 pm

The Oval Centre, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Peter Bales (Chair) Councillor Billy Miskelly (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor Janet Farebrother
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Ron Munby Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor David Wilson

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 702502.

Site visits  
The following site visits will take place:

2/2017/0334 - Land Longcroft House, Grayson Green, High Harrington, Workington

2/2017/0382 - Solway Holiday Village, Skinburness Drive, Silloth - Extension to 
exiting residential caravan park for the siting of 42 residential caravans

2/2017/0247 - Fir Tree Farm, Seaville, Silloth - Erection of broiler unit and associated 
infrastructure (resubmission)

Members of the Development Panel will be picked up from The Oval Centre, 
Workington. The bus will leave at 9.00 am.

Page 1



Agenda
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

3. Questions  
To answer questions from Councillors and members of the public – submitted in 
writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the 
meeting.

4. 2/2017/0382 - Solway Holiday Village, Skinburness Drive, Silloth - 
Extension to exiting residential caravan park for the siting of 42 residential 
caravans  (Pages 3 - 14)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
61592

5. 2/2017/0334 - Land Longcroft House, Grayson Green, High Harrington, 
Workington  (Pages 15 - 26)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
59891

6. 2/2017/0247 - Fir Tree Farm, Seaville, Silloth - Erection of broiler unit and 
associated infrastructure (resubmission)  (Pages 27 - 48)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
57928

Monitoring Officer

Date of Next Meeting:

Tuesday 6 February 2018, 1.00 pm
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2

http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=161592
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=161592
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=159891
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=159891
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=157928
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=157928


Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0382

Proposed 
Development:

Extension of existing residential caravan park for the siting of 42 
residential caravans

Location: Solway Holiday Village
Skinburness Drive
Silloth
Wigton

Applicant: Mr Sam Hagan
Hagan Leisure Group

Recommendation: APPROVE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle Considered acceptable in terms of scale to support existing park 
homes

Siting Acceptable adjacent to existing development

Design and 
materials

Design and materials considered acceptable 

Residential 
amenity

No significant effects on residential amenity

Access and 
parking

Access through existing site and sufficient parking achievable

Drainage Consider a satisfactory scheme can be achieved

Archaeology Archaeological recording considered appropriate

Proposal

The proposed application is for the change of use of an area of land to extend an existing 
Park Home site Meadow View Park.  The application seeks permission for the placing of 
42 park homes on the land to be used for permanent residential use.

Site

The site is currently an agricultural field located adjacent to existing park home 
developments to the south east and north west of the site and the caravan holiday village 
to the north east and agricultural land to the south west.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Building a strong, competitive economy
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Promoting sustainable transport
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014

Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S5 - Development Principles
Policy S6e - Silloth
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market  
Policy S27 - Heritage Assets
Policy S28 - Hadrian's Wall World Heritage Site
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S34 - Development in the Solway Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design

Relevant Planning History

2/2006/1013 - Change of use to residential mobile home site
2/2006/0649 – 34 Residential mobile homes - approved

Representations

Town council- No objections

Highways – No comments to the layout as the development is removed from the 
surrounding highway network.  The development will not have a significant impact on the 
surrounding road network.  Surface water ponding is an issue and would need to be 
addressed.  No objections subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the 
submission of details of the surface water system.

Environment Agency - The proposed development will only meet the requirements of 
the National Planning Policy Framework if the following measure(s) as detailed in the 
Flood Risk Assessment dated April 2017 compiled by A L Daines & Partnership LLP 
submitted with this application are implemented and secured by way of a planning 

Page 4



condition on any planning permission – Finished floor levels are set no lower than 7.5m 
AOD.

Environmental Health – No objections however the new units will have to comply with 
the attached 2008 Residential caravan site licence conditions and the remainder of the 
site may need to be upgraded so that it also meets this standard.  Timescales for this 
would need to be agreed between the applicant and the licensing authority, and may 
require additional planning permission.

This is a significant change to the Meadow View site and as such the applicant may be 
required to apply for a new licence for which they will be charged.

In terms of drainage on the site further information should be provided on the proposed 
drainage system for surface and foul water from this area and therefore I would 
recommend that a condition is attached relating to foul and surface water drainage.

Fire Officer – No objections

County Archaeologist – The site lies within an area of archaeological potential with the 
remains of a Roman camp and Roman field system in adjacent fields to the south west.  
A previous archaeological evaluation has identified archaeological assets and therefore a 
condition should be imposed to secure the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological works.

Natural England - The proposal is unlikely to impact on the interest features for which 
the adjacent Upper Solway Flats and Marshes SSSI and Upper Solway SPA are 
designated. However as stated in the submitted Ecology Report we advise a bat and 
great crested newt survey are conditioned as part of any subsequent planning 
permission.

The application has been advertised on site and neighbouring properties have been 
notified.

There have been 15 letters of objection which relate to the following issues:

 Poor drainage
 Pools of water after heavy rain
 Pools of water in gardens and garages
 Existing drainage system does not work
 The objectors rear garden would be developed
 Increase in traffic
 Existing road is too narrow and would be a struggle for emergency services
 Flooding on the site and adjacent sites
 Advised that the area would not be developed when they bought their property 

because of flooding and archaeology
 Question the need for retirement properties
 The existing sites are not maintained particularly the roads and drains
 Poor design of the existing road layouts
 No mention has been made with regards to the power supply

Page 5



 Problems with the postal addresses
 Privacy issues
 Effects on living conditions 

Main Issues:

The previous applications adjacent to the site and in part covering this site utilised the 
existing private access road via the Solway Holiday Village tourist complex.  These 
applications were approved including a planning condition to ensure no vehicular access 
to the site via the existing Barracks Bridge access which has problems with visibility.  

The principle of residential mobile homes under planning application 2/2006/1013 has 
been established and approved under the former consent (2/2000/0649).  Therefore, 
given the former mobile home consent (2/2006/1013) there are no objections to the 
principle of the use of this site for residential mobile homes.  Part of the site is covered by 
the earlier approval which was not fully implemented.

Officers consider that the layout for 42 homes is acceptable with no adverse impact on 
the visual amenity of the site.  The application for park homes would fall under the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 Section 5.  The layout generally 
conforms with the standards of the Model Standards for caravan sites, therefore officers 
consider that 42 units could be placed within the site whilst complying with the 
regulations which is a reduction in one unit from the original submission.

A small dilapidated building on the eastern boundary of the site would be removed as 
part of the overall development of the site.  The site boundary to the north of this building 
has been amended to remove an existing unit’s garden area.

Physically the site is sited between two sections of residential caravan units. It is 
therefore considered the proposal not intrude into the landscape of the surrounding area.
Therefore similar to the more recent consents for the neighbouring park homes 
development the proposal is considered a sustainable location for such development 
which would benefit from the multitude of services within the town 

Highways

Residents should normally expect similar standards of development to the existing 
Meadow View Park.  Therefore, whilst the road cannot be built to adoptable standards, it 
should be of a standard to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority (as conditioned 
on the former consent).  Indeed the specification of the road approved under the 
conditions of the earlier consent was of a higher standard than that on other mobile home 
residential caravan sites and therefore a similar standard would be required given it 
would be a continuation of the existing site.

Officers consider that given the substandard nature of the access onto the public 
highway from the adjoining Lido Village at Barracks Bridge a condition should be 
imposed to allow access to the development through Meadow View Park and out through 
the main entrance to the holiday park onto Skinburness Drive.  A similar condition was 
imposed on the previous approval.

Page 6



Flood Risk

The site is located within flood zone 2 and the applicant has provided a flood risk 
assessment to support the application.  Park homes are considered to be a highly 
vulnerable development and therefore the applicant has examined land within their 
control surrounding the Solway Holiday Village as a whole.  No land is identified in a 
lower flood risk that could be developed for the use as park homes and mitigations to 
ensure the floor level of the property is at a suitable height above the ground level can 
ensure the risk of flooding to the property.

The caravans would be raised above the ground level and can be conditioned to ensure 
that the risk of flooding would be reduced

The Environment Agency has examined the proposal and has not raised any objections 
in relation to flood risk subject to the implementation of the measures within the flood risk 
assessment being undertaken.  Given the response from the EA and the conclusions of 
the submitted flood risk assessment it is considered that appropriate consideration has 
been undertaken in relation to the flood risk and a condition relating to the drainage from 
the site would ensure the risk of flood risk is not increased by the development.

Drainage

It is proposed that the foul drainage from the site would connect into the main foul sewer 
with a new pumping station installed to the eastern boundary of the site; no 
representations have been received from United Utilities on this issue.  Officers consider 
a condition is appropriate to ensure a satisfactory means of foul drainage is achieved 
from the development without compromising the existing foul drainage arrangement.

The surface water from the site would be drained to a soakaway; given there are known 
issues with standing water within this site and the objectors concerns relating to the 
existing system officers consider that a suitably worded condition can ensure a 
satisfactory means of drainage from the site.

The objectors have referred to issues of both foul and surface water drainage issues on 
the existing Lido Village and Meadow View Park sites.  The owner of the site would be 
responsible for any maintenance or upkeep of the existing systems and the issues 
cannot be rectified under this application.  The condition recommended for this 
application would ensure a satisfactory arrangement is provided on this site which would 
not increase the existing rates.   

The objectors have also commented that there is surface water within drives and 
garages, officers would comment that the actual layout is determined by the site licencing 
and garages are not indicated on this layout and these areas do not include habitable 
accommodation. 

Officers are satisfied as are the local lead flood authority that a satisfactory scheme of 
drainage can be achieved on this site by the inclusion of an appropriately worded 
condition.

Page 7



Ecological

An ecological assessment has been undertaken which has not identified any protected 
species however the report recommends further surveys in relation to bats and great 
crested newts.  The report highlights that the possibility of bats using the site is low; 
however, best practice recommends that as the site is considered to offer ‘low’ roost 
suitability - a minimum of one activity surveys should be conducted to ascertain presence 
/ likely absence of bat roosts.  

There are also ponds within close proximity to the site but not within the site boundary 
itself; the submitted ecological report recommends that a great crested newt presence / 
likely absence survey is conducted to establish if Great Crested newts would be affected 
by the development.  Any survey should provide Impact Assessment and Mitigation 
Strategy (if required).

Natural England has indicated that a condition should be included as part of any approval 
to secure the further surveys outlined above.

Archaeology

The site is located within an area of archaeological potential and a survey has been 
undertaken previously on this site which has highlighted the presence of archaeological 
remains.  The county archaeologist has indicated that a programme of recording needs 
to be undertaken when the groundworks are being undertaken to ensure appropriate 
records are kept if any archaeological remains are disturbed by the proposed 
development.  

Other Issues

Objectors have raised inadequacies with the existing sites. Officers are to investigate any 
potential breaches relating to the earlier consents.  Officers are of the opinion that on its 
individual planning merits a satisfactory scheme for the proposal can be achieved without 
exacerbating problems on adjacent areas. 

The layout of the caravans is determined by the site licence and in general there would 
be a level of privacy similar to the existing development.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act the following local 
finance considerations is relevant to the consideration of the application.  There will be 
benefits arising from the scheme through Council Tax revenue although this has been 
accorded little weight in judging the overall planning merits of the current scheme.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be an appropriate extension to the existing 
park home development on Meadow View Park and approval is recommended. 

Page 8



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in accordance 
with the following plans:
HAG39-1-001A Location Plan 24-11-17 - Amended Plan received 24 
November 2017
HAG39-1-001 Location Plan 24-11-17Amended Plan received 24 November 
2017
16053-02G Proposed Layout 24-11-17- Amended Plan received 24 November 
2017
84 17 0740 Rev A - Elevations
84 17 0740 Rev A - Floor Plan
Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-material alterations 
to the scheme are properly considered.

3. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until full 
details of the carriageway, footways and footpaths have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the 
Highways Authority. These details shall be in accordance with the standards 
laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide. Any works so approved 
shall be constructed before any part of the development is occupied and 
shall not be removed or altered without prior consent of the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction within the approved 
development in the interests of highway safety.

4. Prior to the occupation of any caravan hereby approved details of a 
management programme for the maintenance of the road shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The road upon 
implementation shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the 
approved maintenance scheme.
Reason: To ensure the long term maintenance and management of the approved 
highway details.

5. There shall be no vehicular access to or egress from the site other than via 
the approved access, unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and environmental management.

6. Each individual caravan shall not be occupied until the access and parking 
requirements have been constructed in accordance with the approved plan.  
Any such access and or parking provision shall be retained and be capable 

Page 9



of use when the development is completed and shall not be removed or 
altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason:  To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 
retained for use in relation to the development.

7. Finished floor levels are set no lower than 7.50m above Ordnance Datum 
(AOD).
Reason:  To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and 
future occupants.

8. Details of the siting, height and type of all means of enclosure/screen 
walls/fences/other means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any dwelling(s). 
Any such walls/fences etc shall be constructed prior to the approved 
building being brought into use/occupied. All means of enclosure so 
constructed shall be retained and no part thereof shall be removed without 
the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development which is compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area and safeguard the amenity of 
neighbouring properties.

9. No development shall commence within the site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The written scheme of investigation will include the following 
components.
(a) An archaeological evaluation;
(b) A programme of archaeological analysis, preparation of a site archive 
ready for deposition at a store approved by the Local Planning Authority, 
completion of an archive report, and submission of the results for 
publication in a suitable journal.
Reason: To afford reasonable opportunity (prior to the excavation/disturbance of 
the site and any loss/damage to any potential important remains) for an 
examination to be made to determine the existence of any remains of 
archaeological interest within the site and for the examination and recording of 
such remains.

10.No development shall commence until full details including calculations of 
the surface water system demonstrating that no flooding will occur on any 
part of the site for a 1 in 30 year event unless designed to do so, flooding 
will not occur to any building in a 1 in 100 year event plus 30 % to account 
for climate change, and where reasonably possible flows resulting from 
rainfall in excess of a 1 in 100 year 6 hour rainfall event are managed in 
conveyance routes (plans of flow routes) have been agreed in writing with 
the local planning authority. The proposed scheme should meet the 
requirements of Sustainable drainage systems: non-statutory technical 
standards (March 2015).
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of surface water drainage and minimise 
the risk of flooding from the development in comparison to an assessment of its 

Page 10



existing undeveloped state, in compliance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Policies S29 and S2 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

11.Prior to the occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby approved details of the 
management and maintenance programme for the drainage works hereby 
approved  shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
(i) The approved surface water drainage scheme shall be fully 
implemented prior to the occupation of any dwellinghouse, and maintained 
in accordance with the approved management and maintenance programme 
at all times thereafter. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby 
approved details of the management and maintenance programme for the 
drainage works hereby approved  shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
(i) The approved surface water drainage scheme shall be fully 
implemented prior to the occupation of any dwellinghouse, and maintained 
in accordance with the approved management and maintenance programme 
at all times thereafter. 
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of 
policies within the NPPF and NPPG.

12.The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be 
carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated April 2017 compiled by A L Daines & 
Partnership LLP including its mitigation measures prior to the occupation of 
the development hereby approved detailed within the FRA.
1.  Identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an 
appropriate safe haven.
2.  Finished floor levels are set no lower than 7.5 metres above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD).
Reason: To ensure safe access and egress from and to the site and to reduce the 
impact of flooding on the proposed development and future occupants in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S29 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan, Part 1, July 2014.

13.Prior to the commencement of works a presence/absences survey for great 
crested newts shall be underkaken between April - June by a qualified 
consultant shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Any approved mitigation measures shall be fully implemented in 
accordance with the approved detailed scheme..
Reason: To minimise the development impact from construction works on any 
protected species, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework, 
Policy S35 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014

14.Prior to and within two years of the commencement of demolition works on 
site, details of a bat emergence survey, a dawn survey or automated bat 
survey and further internal and external inspection by a qualified consultant 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Any 

Page 11



approved mitigation measures shall be fully implemented in accordance 
with the approved detailed scheme.
Reason:  To safeguard any potential bat species during construction works at the 
application site, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework, 
Policy S35 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

15.Only foul drainage shall be discharged to the public sewer. No development 
shall commence until a scheme for the disposal of foul drainage from the 
site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
writing. The scheme shall be fully implemented as approved prior to the first 
occupation of the housing hereby approved and shall be maintained 
operational thereafter.
Reason: To ensure a sustainable means of drainage from the site and minimise 
the risk of water pollution to the local water environment, in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014

Proactive Statement

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern within the application (as originally submitted) and where appropriate 
negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments and solutions to the proposal to 
address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant 
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Notes to Applicant:

Page 12



Location of application proposal

P
age 13



Location of application proposal showing larger area

P
age 14



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0334

Section 106

Proposed 
Development:

Variation of condiitions 2 (approved plans) and 7 (landscaping) on 
application 2/2014/0089 for the erection of detached 3 bedroom 
dwelling

Location: Land at
Longcroft House
Grayson Green
High Harrington
Workington

Applicant: Mr S Sandelands

Recommendation: Approve

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Design and siting The design, siting and materials are considered to be acceptable 
for the dwelling and the associated boundary treatments. 

The dwelling has been partially re-sited; 1 metre closer (8m 
distant) from the neighbouring dwelling known as ‘The Farm 
House’. This is the north east gable elevation. Overlooking from 
windows could be prevented by obscure glazing secured by 
planning condition.

Access No objections from Cumbria Highways. Amendments proposed to 
re-site and reduce the height of the boundary wall will improve 
access to the lane for neighbours and users of the land and will be 
more aesthetically pleasing.

Drainage Foul drainage – To mains.
Surface water drainage – To soakaway. This is on third party land 
and will require a section 106 to secure future maintenance 
arrangements.

Public Rights of 
Way

 No adverse impact on the public right of way.

Residential 
amenity and 
landscaping

The proposed landscaping and boundary arrangements are 
considered acceptable however there have been neighbour 
objections regarding the position of the boundary wall adjacent to 
the lane. 

The alterations to the dwelling itself are considered to be minor 
alterations to that which was approved under 2/2014/0089 and 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



residential impacts are considered to be acceptable.
Mitigation provided to prevent overlooking of neighbouring 
properties includes screening of the rear balcony, and obscure 
glazing to the north east elevation. There will be tree and shrub 
planting and the removal and reduction in height of the boundary 
wall to the access lane to the north east elevation.

Proposal

Variation of conditions 2 and 7 on planning approval 2/2014/0089. Variation to reposition 
house, and minor alterations to building and landscaping. The proposal is substantially 
retrospective with the dwelling house nearing completion.
Site

The site was historically the ‘sunken garden’ area of Longcroft House which is a large 
Victorian house. The new build dwelling subject to this application, is now a part 
constructed residential dwelling; following the approval of planning application 
2/2014/0089 for a detached dwelling.  The 2014 application was a resubmission of a 
previously approved detached dwelling under planning application 2/2012/0543.

The original topography of the site was a sloping site and therefore the house is two 
storey to the frontage (with a similar scale to the adjacent Longcroft House), however as 
proposed, the rear of the new dwelling can provide 4 storeys of residential 
accommodation (comprising a basement level, ground  floor, first floor and attic room 
within the roof space).

To the north of the site at a lower level is a residential barn conversion.  This has a cat 
slide roof. It is noted that at the time of the original planning approval (2/2012/0543) the 
neighbouring barn conversion had also received planning permission to demolish an 
existing conservatory/ side extension and to provide a modern two storey glazed balcony 
extension with fenestration details that are contemporary and similar to those in the 
current application under consideration. This scheme however has not been 
implemented.

A large ash tree historically was to the front of Longcroft House and would have screened 
the new build dwelling and although protected by a Tree Preservation Order 5/2012, 
October 2012 it became diseased and was removed in September 2014.This was 
allowed by the Council.  

A hedgerow was historically sited to the northern edge of the site adjacent to a lane that 
links onto public footpaths (FP 262023 and FP262035). The lane also provides access to 
neighbouring dwellings and agricultural land beyond. The hedgerow has since been 
removed and a concrete block wall has replaced it. This was constituted permitted 
development and did not require planning permission. 

The boundary details have been revisited by the applicant to address neighbour 
concerns and the scheme proposes a reduction in wall height. The applicant has also 
agreed to finish the wall in render and re-site the wall at the upper part of the lane to 

Page 16



improve access arrangements down the lane for other users of the lane. 

The site is surrounded by a variety of dwellings comprising a large Victorian dwelling 
(Longcroft House), modern dwellings, cottages and barn conversions. The site is to the 
edge of the Harrington settlement and the hamlet is known as Grayson Green which is 
an elevated semi-rural location and commands views over the Solway.

To the north west of the site is agricultural land, over which a public footpath leads in a 
westerly direction towards Harrington.
Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
Requiring good design 
Promoting healthy communities 

Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 Adopted 2014

Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design 
Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles 
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth 
Policy S30 - Reuse of Land 
Policy S31 - Reuse of rural buildings and replacement of dwellings in the countryside 
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity 
Policy S33 - Landscape 
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity 
Policy S4 - Design principles 
Policy S5 - Development Principles 
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market  
Relevant Planning History

2/2014/0089 - Detached single dwelling approved (extant)
2/2012/0543 - Detached single dwelling approved

Representations

The application has been referred to Development Panel by Cllr Harrington. The reason 
for the matter being referred regard complaints by local residents.

Workington Town Council - No objections. Concern the dwelling has been re-sited and 
that there should be reviews during construction.

Page 17



Cumbria Highways - The proposed changes do not affect the highway.

Rights of Way Officer - 2/2012/0543 comments set out that footpaths 262023 and 
262035 run adjacent to the site and must not be altered or obstructed by the 
development. 

The application has been advertised on site and adjacent properties have been notified.  
27 letters/email of objection.  

The concerns raised relate to:
The design of the house, the position, size, scale and height in relation to adjoining 
properties and the materials used are not traditional;
The shape and detailing of the prominent upper floor front window is out of place;
The dwelling towers over other dwellings;
There are wide variations in ground levels and traditional houses and barns have been 
built along these slopes with single storey at the higher levels and 2 storeys at the lower 
levels.
The dwelling is overbearing with large expanses of glass to the front and rear elevation;
The building blocks light, invades privacy and causes drainage issues;

The impact of the development on the character of the neighbourhood and the amenity of 
the residents;
The rear view looks like inner city flats and dominates the landscape;
Concern about the trees being planted.
The new dwelling blocks views over open countryside and the Solway;
The house is not screened by the more attractive Victorian landscaping to assist in the 
softening and blending of the scheme

The garden of Longcroft House had old features which were said to mark the boundaries 
of the original Grayson Green to include a hedge bank, a stone wall of terraces and an 
ash tree and the hedge between the Longcroft House former rose garden and the lane 
lead to Billy Watson’s Lonning to the rear of Grayson Green farmhouse.
The dwelling is too close to boundaries with an adjoining field and the lane at the back of 
the farmhouse;

Concern about the accuracy of plans and the delays in processing of the application.
The drawings are not accurate;

The former hedgerow and ash tree supported wildlife and should not have been 
removed;
The lanes and footpaths have been popular places to walk with views over the Solway;

New boundaries are ugly made from timber and breeze block walls. A new wall has been 
built to the edge of the former hedgerow (not the root line of the hedgerow) and therefore 
has claimed 12 to 18 inches of the land restricting access to farm vehicles that now need 
to reverse down the lane;
A hedgerow allows farm vehicles to pass more easily;
The top corner of the lane is difficult to negotiate;

Big tankers cannot get down the lane to empty a septic tank and smaller tankers must be 

Page 18



used at an extra cost to existing residents;
Concern about surface water drainage arrangements and that surface water will flood 
neighbouring property.

Adjacent owner has no problem with principle of a dwelling on the site but is concerned 
about the access and drainage.

Planning History 

The site gained planning permission for a detached dwelling in 2012, planning application 
2/2012/0543 which by virtue of the access remains extant. This was for a dwelling that 
was two storeys to the front elevation and 3 storeys to the rear elevation and benefited 
from a rear second floor balcony and extensive rear glazing features. There were also 
chimney details associated with the scheme. There were no objections on the subject of 
the scale, mass, siting and external finishes from neighbours at Grayson Green or from 
the wider consultation process on these matters. There were 3 letters of objection to the 
2012 scheme regarding concerns over the impact on the access road, the limited parking 
and manoeuvring within the locality; concern about construction vehicles and any 
adverse effect on local dwellings during construction works from congestion and vibration 
and additional traffic will cause increased congestion.

The scheme was subsequently revised and approved in 2014, under planning application 
2/2014/0089. In 2014, 1 letter of objection was received, expressing concern regarding 
the access road, bank area, access and manoeuvring in the vicinity and concern about 
damage to the access lane from construction traffic. There were no objections regarding 
the scale, design or siting of the dwelling, with a rear balcony and extensive glazing from 
neighbour consultations. Levels were not provided as part of this scheme to establish the 
floor levels via datum levels.

Following the 2014 planning approval, a scheme to discharge conditions was approved 
under CON1/2014/0089. This related to conditions 3 (contamination), 7(landscaping) and 
9 (root protection of TPO) of planning approval 2/2014/0089. Subsequently the Ash tree 
became diseased and although initially protected by a TPO was removed under 
agreement with the planning authority. In the approved landscaping scheme the 
hedgerow adjacent to the lane was to be retained.

Assessment

The principal of a three storey dwelling as viewed from the rear was secured under the 
planning approvals of 2012 and 2014. This current scheme sets out the revisions to the 
2/2014/0655 scheme as built (2016) and these are detailed below.

South east elevation (Front)

Ridge: 6.9cm lower
Eaves 5.9cm higher
Width 3.4cm wider
Position 10.2cm to right.
Windows: All windows 12.1cm taller and 28.4cm narrower. There are minor alterations in 

Page 19



window positioning.

Porch: 44cm wider and 28.4cm higher and the porch window is 25cm narrower and 
33.1cm lower.

North west elevation (Rear)

Ridge: 1cm higher 
Eaves:18cm lower
Width 12.9cm wider
Windows: Centre window 27cm lower, 7cm shorter and 3.2cm narrower.
Right hand window 55cm lower down, 9.8cm wider, 20cm taller and 12cm to right.
Left hand window 55cm lower down, 9.8cm wider, 20cm taller and 32.6cm to left.
Minor alterations to doors and balcony.
The rear first floor windows have been lowered due to the flat roof construction of the 
rear balcony as required by building regulations. The rear transom to the upper window 
has been lowered for building regulation purposes

North east elevation (Lane side)

Porch: 29cm deeper
Lower door: 20cm to the right, 10cm higher, 3cm taller and 14.8cm narrower.
Ground floor (left): 2.1cm narrower, 5.1cm shorter, 30cm up and 13.3cm to left.
Ground floor window (right): 2.1cm narrower, 5.1cm shorter, 30cm up and 49.1cm to 
right.
First floor window: 2.1cm narrower, 5.1cm shorter, 37.1cm up and 20.7cm to left.
Privacy wall 49cm taller.

Windows to the north east elevation to be obscure glazing and a lower level door is 
shown on plans to basement.

South west (garden side)

Minor alterations to window and balcony floor 62cm higher.

It is considered the alterations to the built 2016 scheme are minor when compared to the 
approved 2014 scheme and therefore do not cause adverse impacts from an amenity 
point of view. It is also noted mitigation is provided to prevent overlooking from the north 
east elevation including obscure glazing and a balcony screen wall. The design, scale, 
massing and materials of the 2016 dwelling as built, are considered to be acceptable for 
the locality although contemporary in nature.

The proposed landscaping scheme and boundary alterations and treatments (a reduced 
land side boundary wall) will further soften the development. The wall is to be re-sited at 
the top of the lane and this will part address matters relating to neighbour concerns over 
accessing of the adjacent lane.

Foul drainage will be discharged to the mains in the 2016 scheme as established in the 
2012 and 2014 scheme. 

Page 20



Surface water will be discharged to a soakaway scheme on neighbouring third party land. 
The implementation and maintenance of the soakaway will be secured through a section 
106 legal agreement.  Surface water discharge is further considered in building 
regulations and it is noted that surface water in the 2012 and 2014 schemes were 
proposed to be discharged to soakaways. 

The most recent plans received 18 December 2017 show minor alterations to boundary 
treatment adjacent to the lane, (whereby the existing boundary wall is part removed). 
Officers have informally notified residents and objectors of this minor alteration to the 
plans however it is noted that the existing wall adjacent to the lane is permitted 
development. Nevertheless the removal of the wall is welcomed by officers in response 
to previous neighbour concerns regarding the existing wall. Officers consider the partial 
removal of the wall and its substitution with soft landscaping (a hedge) will provide a 
more attractive visual appearance to the entrance of the dwelling site and also responds 
to neighbour concerns regarding the ease of vehicular access around the top corner of 
the lane.

The re-siting of the dwelling is not considered to cause an adverse impact on residential 
amenity.
 
Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act, Local Financial 
Considerations relate to the New Homes Bonus.

Conclusion

The alterations to the dwelling are considered to be relatively minor in nature in terms of 
the dwelling itself to what was approved in 2014. The proposed boundary treatment 
alterations, landscaping and surface water arrangements seek to address neighbour 
concerns. As such the scheme is favourably considered and subject to a s106 to address 
the surface water drainage details is recommended for approval in accordance with 
planning policies as set out within the report.
  

Page 21



Annex 1

Section 106
Surface water arrangements on third party land

Conditions/Reasons

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in accordance 
with the following plans:
SM/DWELL/SP1 - Site location plan (2/2014/0089)
LON-001001-A  Detailed Comparison Plan Approved and Built 20September 
2017
B8239 SK600D Proposed Landscape Plan  received 15 December 2017
B8239 SK601D Proposed Surface Water Plan received 15 December 2017
B8239 SK700D Proposed NE Elevation (swept wall) received 18 December 
2017
LON-001-002 Topographical detail received 18 December 2017
Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-material alterations 
to the scheme are properly considered.

3. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until there 
has been the completion of the boundary treatments in accordance with 
drawing numbers B8239SK600D Proposed Landscape Plan and B8239 
SK700D Proposed NE elevation (swept wall). All planting comprised within 
the scheme shall be carried out in the first planting season following 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period 
of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with other similar size and species, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In order to 
enhance the appearance of the development and minimise the impact of the 
development in the locality.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or in any Statutory Instrument revoking 
or re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no development 
falling within Part 1 and Part 2 of Schedule 2 of the said Order shall be 
carried out without the prior written permission of the Local Planning 
Authority upon an application submitted to it. 
Reason: The Local Planning Authority wishes to retain control over any proposed 
alterations/ extensions and boundary treatments in the interests of the appearance 
of the site and safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties.

Page 22



5. The approved level 5 obscure glazing to windows to the north east elevation 
(lane side) hereby approved under NE elevation drawing B8239/SK700 D 
shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of the dwelling approved 
and shall be retained at all times thereafter unless agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 
dwelling houses, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies S4, DM14 and DM15 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

6. Only foul drainage shall be connected to the public sewer.
Reason: To ensure a sustainable means of drainage from the site and minimise 
the risk of water pollution to the local water environment, in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

7. The approved balcony privacy wall (elevation drawing B8239/SK700D 
relating to the lane side (north east elevation), shall be fully implemented 
prior to the occupation of the dwelling approved and shall be retained at all 
times thereafter unless agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 
dwelling houses, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies S4, DM14 and DM15 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

Proactive Statement

Application Approved Following Revisions

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern within the application (as originally submitted) and where appropriate 
negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments and solutions to the proposal to 
address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant 
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Notes to Applicant:

Page 23



Location of application proposal

P
age 24



Location of application proposal showing larger area

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0247

Proposed 
Development:

Erection of broiler unit and associated infrastructure 
(Resubmission)

Location: Fir Tree Farm
Seaville
Silloth
Wigton

Applicant: Mr  Storr

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
Development

The building would be an isolated structure and is not considered 
to be located in an appropriate location and would not be 
supported by Local and National planning policy.

Landscape The proposal is considered to have significant negative impacts 
on the landscape especially by virtue of the scale of the 
development and its location in a flat topographic landscape 
within the Solway Coast’s AONB. 

Siting Considered to be in a detached isolated position away from the 
main farm holding and built development.

AONB Would have significant negative impacts on the setting of the 
AONB.

Highways No significant effects on road network.

Noise No significant harm arising from the proposal.

Flood risk An acceptable flood risk assessment has been submitted and any 
potential impacts from drainage of the site could be mitigated by 
condition. 

Ecology No significant effects arising from the proposal.  

Residential 
amenity 

The proposal is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on 
residential amenity.

Design Standard agricultural construction deemed acceptable for type of 
development.

Need Justified as a form of farm diversification.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Proposal

The application seeks permission for the erection of a broiler unit to accommodate 
105,000 chickens on land near Seaville, Silloth.  The site would incorporate a steel 
portal framed building with a floor space of 2586m², 3 silos, 2 lpg gas tanks, concrete 
hardstanding, muck midden, earth bund and additional planting.  

The proposed shed would measure approximately 121.76 metres in length, 21.63 
metres in width and 4.57 metres to ridge height.  

The application has been called in for consideration by the development panel by 
Councillor Markley.

Site

The site as a whole covers an area of approximately 2.53ha and is located off a minor 
road which leads to the hamlets of Seaville, Brownrigg and Red Flatt.  The site is 3.8km 
to the south east of Silloth and 1.9km to the north of Abbeytown.

Land levels are relatively flat given its siting on the coastal plain. The flat and open 
topography of the surrounding area is rural in character, interspersed with some 
residential properties within isolated hamlets and agricultural holdings.

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Building a strong, competitive economy
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Supporting a prosperous rural economy
Promoting sustainable transport
Requiring good design

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014

Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S6e - Silloth  Policy S22 - Transport principles
Policy S14 - Rural economy
Policy S27 - Heritage Assets
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S34 - Development in the Solway Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity
Policy S36 - Air, water and soil quality

Page 28



Policy DM5 - Farm diversification
Policy DM6 - Equestrian and agricultural buildings
Policy DM12 - Sustainable Construction
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design
Policy DM17 - Trees, hedgerows and woodland

Relevant Planning History

2/2015/0422 – Erection of Broiler Unit – Refused on the grounds of ;

1. Insufficient information has been submitted with the application relating to the design 
of the access in order to assess adequately the impact of the proposed development 
having regard to access for articulated lorries and potential for loss of hedgerow. In the 
absence of this information, it has not been possible to demonstrate that the proposal 
would comply with Policies S4, S33 and DM17 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 
2014. 

2. The proposed development, by reason of its size, siting and design, would form a 
visually obtrusive feature which would detract from the rural character and appearance 
of the surrounding rural area and the character and setting of the Solway Coast 
designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The proposal is therefore contrary to 
polices S4, S33, S34, DM5 and DM6 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014 and 
paragraphs 109, 115 and 116 the NPPF.

Representations

Parish Council – The Parish Council objected to the previous planning application (Ref 
No: 2/2015/0422) and would like to re-iterate their concerns in relation to this current 
application.  The Parish Council felt that there are more than enough chicken sheds in 
the Parish already.  The proposed site of the broiler unit is to be in what is otherwise 
open countryside and part of the Solway Coast AONB and would spoil it. The broiler unit 
should be sited near to Mr Storr's own farm which would have less of an impact on the 
open views.

Environment Agency – Indicate that an Environmental Permit to operate if their 
livestock capacity exceeds 40,000 poultry so a permit application will be required. 

Natural England – Highlight that the development is within close proximity to a number 
of European sites including the Upper Solway Flats and Marshes Special Protection 
Area (SPA), Ramsar1 site, and the Solway Firth Special Area of Conservation (SAC). 
This site is also notified at a national level as the Upper Solway Flats and Marshes Site 
of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), the South Solway Mosses SAC, which is notified at 
the national level as Wedholme Flow SSSI. Bowness Common SSSI is 6.3 km North 
west of the application site; this also forms part of the South Solway Mosses SAC.

The application site is also within 5km of the Thornhill Moss and Meadows SSSI 
And 4km from the Silloth Dunes and Mawbray Bank SSSI 

As stated in our previous response in April 2016, the interest features of the sites listed 

Page 29



above are sensitive to impacts from aerial pollutants, such as those likely to be emitted 
from this proposal. 

At that time, the Environment Agency (EA) carried out an ammonia screening 
assessment and determined that a detailed air quality modelling assessment was not 
required.  However, due to the number of birds proposed an EA permit will be required 
under the Environmental Permitting Regulations, and provided this is obtained, Natural 
England have no objection to the proposal, but advise that an appropriate planning 
condition or obligation is attached to any planning permission.

Given no pink footed geese and swans have been identified on the site itself it would 
recommend that the broiler unit is constructed out of the SPA bird season (Sept – 
March) to avoid any disturbance impacts on SPA birds foraging in adjacent fields and to 
negate the need for further surveys.

Natural England is concerned that the spreading of litter / manure / wash water to land 
can cause localised peaks in ammonia concentrations that could result in critical level 
exceedance at nearby designated sites. We therefore advise farmers to use Best 
Available Techniques to reduce emissions of odour and ammonia, increase efficiency of 
nitrogen uptake and benefit the environment, including designated sites. 

As the proposed development is within the Solway Coast AONB which is a nationally 
designated landscape, and this application has been revised primarily to take account of 
the AONB partnership’s concerns, they should be re-consulted on the revised proposal. 
You will need to ascertain if the revised plans and additional information adequately 
address these concerns, and to confirm whether or not it would impact significantly on 
the purposes of the AONB designation. 

The proposal encompasses an area of Coastal and Floodplain Grazing Marsh which is 
designated as Priority Habitat. 

AONB Officer – Despite the fact that this is a modification of the existing refused 
application, we are unable to support this application as the scale of the unit is not 
appropriate to the landscape in this area.

The proposed broiler unit is a single element in open countryside away from the 
curtilage of the farmstead, and not in the context of the existing farm layout where it 
would be in keeping with traditional farmstead and settlement development character. 
As such, it would be highly visible in a landscape recognised as nationally significant for 
its landscape character. The low lying, pastoral nature of the surrounding farmland with 
its vast open views would render a building of such a huge size visually intrusive. An 
appropriate development of this kind would be of a much smaller size and within or very 
close to the farmstead boundary, but this is not the case here. Furthermore, whilst style 
and materials are similar to other modern farm buildings on the Solway Plain, the 
proposed building is of a modern, industrial style, and as a result, would create a greater 
visual impact in open countryside because of its large size.  

Although new mitigation measures have been put in place to shield the unit from sight 
through planting, these features are still not characteristic of the landscape at this 
location, with its “flat, relatively open area of improved pasture, which has strong visual 

Page 30



connections to the coastal margin and seascape or Morecambe Bay and the Firth” and 
the proposed planting will in itself have a significant impact on views. 

For the reasons detailed above, the Solway Coast AONB objects to this development, 
and we would encourage the Planning Committee to carefully consider the points raised 
above in light of the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 115 which states 
“Great weight should be given to conserving landscape and scenic beauty in National 
Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest 
status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty.”  

Environmental Health – I have considered the information submitted by the applicant 
and I have noted that due to the unit having 105000 places for birds an Environment 
Agency permit will be required. This will ensure that the facility uses Best Available 
Techniques (BAT) in order to ensure that noise, odour, air, land and water emissions 
are minimised. 

No objections are raised subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the submission 
of a detailed acoustic report given the sites rural nature and potentially low noise levels.

Highways – Note that the new proposed access is markedly better than the previous 
and is welcomed. There is a watercourse across the entrance so ordinary watercourse 
consent would be required from the highways authority to proceed with the bridging of 
this access. This would also be applicable to any of the passing places that are to be 
constructed over a watercourse.

There is little supporting information regarding traffic generation and although it is 
envisaged there would not be a significant impact on the network, however the 
perceived nature of the vehicles suggests it would be prudent to provide a dilapidation 
survey prior to works commencing, this should be reviewed after 3 years with the 
relevant highway officers from the start of operations of the site and any defects made 
good. Any works carried out within the public highway will need the relevant permits 
from this authority

No objections subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to a construction method 
statement, full details of the surface water drainage system and the access being 
constructed in accordance with the approved plans prior to the development being 
brought into use.

The application has been advertised on site and within the press, neighbouring 
properties have been notified.

There has been one letter of support from the NFU highlighting that the development is 
in line with policy within the NPPF, Allerdale’s own planning policy and the Solway 
Coast Management Plan’s own stated policy positions and priorities. 

The applicant has provided 7 letters of support which indicate that they don’t believe the 
development would have any landscape impacts or effects on nearby properties.

Page 31



Main Issues:

The application is a resubmission to a previously refused application for a single large 
scale broiler unit; the proposal differs from the original submission by moving the 
proposed building to the western side of the same field.

The capacity of chickens outlined within the application is for 105,000 chickens; this 
would fall within Schedule 1 and would therefore automatically require an Environmental 
Impact Assessment (EIA).  The application has been submitted with a supporting EIA 
documentation and reports.

Site and surroundings

The site is located in a standalone position within a small field and is within an open flat 
area of ground currently in agricultural use with mature hedging on all sides.  The 
proposal is located to the south of the small cluster of farming units and residential 
properties at Seaville (0.56km to the south of Seaville and the applicants nearest 
agricultural building and 0.45km from Stone House Farm to the north west.)  

Land levels are relatively flat given the proximity to the coast. The surrounding area is 
rural in character, interspersed with some residential properties and agricultural 
holdings.

The site is accessed off an unclassified road which joins the B5032. 

The proposed shed is approximately 35m2 larger than the previously refused scheme. A 
line of extractor units would be interdispersed along the ridgeline of the building.  The 
size of the shed is considered to be larger in scale than most standard agricultural 
buildings found within the immediate locality and only comparable to other broiler 
facilities in the Borough.

Externally there would be 3 silos and 2 large capacity LPG tanks, with a series of 
extractor fans located along the ridgeline of the building approximately 83cm in height 
above the ridge line.   The silos would be 6m in height which would be 1.428m higher 
than the previously refused scheme.

To the north of the building would be a muck midden which would be accessed by a 
stone access track along the eastern side of the building. A generator building would be 
housed in an existing brick built building to the north east and a hardstanding would be 
created to the front of the proposed building which would allow vehicles to turn within 
the site.

The buildings would have a control room located on the gable of the shed with feed silos 
located to the western side of the shed

The shed would be constructed of profiled sheeting above concrete block walls with a 
profiled sheet roof.  The materials are considered to be commonplace on other 
agricultural buildings within the wider area.

Officers in assessing the merits of the physical and visual impact of the proposal 

Page 32



acknowledge that the site is a detached and isolated location in the open countryside 
and is not well related to the applicants existing farmstead or other man made group of 
buildings. 

Policy considerations

The assessment of the proposal encompasses both economic and environmental 
planning policy considerations 

Within the Planning Policy context, the proposal would be used in connection with an 
existing rural business as a form of farm diversification and therefore would be 
supported under Chapter 3 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), which 
outlines under paragraph 28 that promoting a strong rural economy by way of economic 
growth in rural areas should be supported. 

Under Chapter 11 of the NPPF, S33 and S34 of the Allerdale Local Plan there is an 
emphasis on protecting the landscape and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

Chapter 11 of the NPPF highlights “Great weight should be given to conserving 
landscape and scenic beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the 
highest status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty.”

The NPPF also states that planning permission should be refused for major 
developments in these designated areas except in exceptional circumstances and 
where it can be demonstrated they are in the public interest. Consideration of such 
applications should include an assessment of:

● the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and 
the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy;
● the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the designated area, or 
meeting the need for it in some other way; and
● any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational 
opportunities, and the extent to which that could be moderated constitute exceptional 
circumstances. 

Officers acknowledge that agricultural development by its very nature is focused within 
areas of open countryside. However it is essential, given the sensitivity of its associated 
landscape that developments are sympathetic with their site and surrounding to 
minimise the visual impact and intrusion of any built form into its environment. This is of 
particular relevance given the landscape sensitivities of the national designation of the 
AONB. 

Therefore whilst the policy objectives are primarily aimed at other forms of development 
it is for members to judge whether the merits of this large scale major agricultural 
development are similarly applicable, or alternatively fall within the “exceptional 
circumstances“ category of the policy context. In officers opinion it should be sited in the 
environment of the farm and in this case the development is of a major nature and 
would not be considered to comply with the objectives of Chapter 11 of the NPPF.

Under Policy S2 of the local plan sustainable development is promoted and in this case 

Page 33



although there would be economic benefits to the applicant as highlighted by the design 
and access statement they fail to highlight how the development would comply with the 
environmental part of Policy S2.  Officers do not believe that the building would make a 
positive contribution to the local area whilst ensuring that natural, historic and 
environmental assets are enhanced or conserved.  Also within Policy S2 there is a 
presumption to protect the landscape character and local distinctiveness of the area; 
again, in officer’s opinion, the development fails to protect the landscape character or 
local distinctiveness of the area.

Officers consider that the design principles under Policy S4 would not be supported as 
the development fails to positively contribute to the character or quality of the site and 
surrounding area.

The objectives of Policy S34 are to conserve and/or enhance the Solway Coast Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  Any development within this area should be in 
accordance with the aims and objectives of the Solway Coast AONB management Plan 
and should have regard to the Landscape and Seascape Character Assessment. Policy 
S43 highlights that

 “Proposals both within or adjoining the AONB will be expected to have regard to the 
Solway Coast AONB Landscape and Seascape Character Assessment and ensure;
a) The scale, siting or design of proposed development is appropriate to the landscape 
setting;
b) Existing landscape features are incorporated in a way which preserves or enhances 
the character of the area and mitigates the effects of development.

Planning permission for major developments within the AONB will be considered in 
accordance with national policy and will be resisted except where exceptional 
circumstances can be demonstrated”.

Although the proposal constitutes an agricultural development scheme in the open 
countryside, the primary environmental planning consideration and constraint relates to 
its sensitive location within the designated Solway Coast Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty.

The Planning Practice Guidance concerning  this national landscape designation
advises that ;

“An area of outstanding natural beauty (AONB) is land protected by the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000 (CROW Act). It protects the land to conserve and enhance its 
natural beauty.”

Through this designation it states the council’s role as ;

“Under the CROW Act, you, the relevant local authority, must make sure that all 
decisions have regard for the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty 
of the AONB. Your decisions and activities must consider the potential effect it will have 
within the AONB and land outside its boundary.” and  that
 “…any proposals have regard for the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural 
beauty of the AONB, …”   with the  

Page 34



“.. need to assess the impact on protected sites and areas and make sure they’re 
protected in line with their status. “

In making any decision the council should investigate the potential impact and seek to 
check risks are minimised to avoid protected areas.

In terms of mitigation the guidance advises 

” If  it isn’t possible to avoid affecting protected sites or areas, applicants should have a 
mitigation strategy to:

 reduce the negative effects of their proposal
 show how they will implement risk reduction measures”

If necessary mitigation and compensation measures should be agreed as part of the 
proposal either under a planning obligation s106 agreement or planning conditions.

Officers consider that the scale, siting and design are not appropriate in this landscape 
setting and would be contrary to both policy S34 and paragraphs Chapter 11 of the 
NPPF, in particular paragraphs 115 and 116 of the NPPF.

The site is detached from the existing farming in an isolated position, policy DM6 
outlines that proposals for agricultural buildings in the countryside will be permitted 
provided:

a) New development is, where possible, closely related to existing farm buildings or 
other groups of buildings, and where this is not possible, development is 
designed and sited to minimise impact on the landscape setting;

b)  Buildings respect and enhance the rural character of the local area in terms of 
design, scale, siting, external appearance and construction materials;

c)  It can be demonstrated that there is not a significant adverse effect on:
i. Local amenity (light, air quality/emissions, noise, odour, water pollution);
ii. Landscape and visual qualities such as the character and sensitivity of the 
surrounding landscape;
iii. Nature conservation features, biodiversity and geodiversity, such as Natura 
2000 sites, protected habitats and species, sites of international and national 
nature conservation value, including features outside the sites boundaries that 
may be affected by the proposal and the activities that result;
iv. Historic assets.

d) The proposal includes appropriate measures for the disposal of manure and 
waste; and

e) Proposals for larger scale private or commercial equestrian enterprises or 
agricultural businesses should;
i) be well related to the primary road network; and
ii) not compromise highway safety or the free flow of traffic; and
iii) provide an adequate level of off road facilities to allow operation of the 

Page 35



business. 

Although the applicant has provided written justification as to the examination of three 
alternative sites, two in proximity to the applicant’s farmstead and another isolated site 
near the current proposal, officers are of the opinion that the sites identified nearer the 
farm steading cannot be deemed unsuitable. No plans have been provided to indicate 
that logistically a building would not be physically achievable on these site, or a smaller 
building/two buildings that would not be financially viable-indeed a smaller agricultural 
building was recently approved and implemented during the course of this application on 
one of the alternative sites next to the applicants farmstead.  There is sufficient space 
adjacent to the existing buildings to allow expansion to the dairy side of the business 
whilst allowing for the construction of a broiler shed.  The application documents 
indicate that they wish to keep the area around the farm clear for expansion of the farm, 
considering this application is outlined within the application documents as a 
diversification of the farm business this would be seen as an appropriate expansion of 
the farm.

Officers do not dispute the need for diversification of the dairy business, but, do not 
consider the justification provided for a detached building is robust enough to support 
the location with the harm to the protected landscape and open countryside and 
therefore would not be supported under both local and national policies.

Environmental Issues

The application documents indicate that the council’s environmental health department 
would not support an application nearer the farm. However given the larger size of the 
proposal the site would be alternatively controlled under the environmental permitting 
regime controlled by the Environment Agency (EA) in terms of noise, odour, ammonia, 
etc. and they would be the determining authority if the site was not suitable in this regard 
and not the council’s environmental health department.

The EA highlights within their response to the agent that “the Environment Agency uses 
Environmental Permits to regulate some aspects of the environmental impact of 
activities at sites in England. This helps to prevent or reduce pollution to the 
environment. An Environmental Permit sets restrictions on emissions to air, water and 
land from a permitted site. It also places conditions on other things such as how an 
operator manages waste.    The environmental permit relates to the control of emissions 
from the facility on the environment and on people’s health. It does not relate to issues 
such as the choice of location of the site, traffic movements, visual impact, operating 
hours and light pollution. These are matters that are considered through the planning 
application process.  So we can’t get involved in fundamental choices on site selection 
which is a planning issue”

The EA has provided additional comments to the applicant’s agents in terms of siting 
that there could be potential negative effects on nearby receptors; however, they cannot 
provide a definitive answer without an application in the form of a permit being submitted 
to them with the full details of the proposal.  The council have not been party to any of 
the discussions with the environment agency and have not seen any plans in relation to 
the location of the site that was discussed and cannot verify any concerns that could be 
raised by the proximity of other receptors without a detailed assessment being 

Page 36



undertaken.

Officers are mindful that the applicant is unlikely to go to the expense of providing the 
reports on a site that they do not wish to pursue and that the pursuit of such evidence 
would in this context be unreasonable. Consequently overall although officers still 
question and have reservations as to the feasibility of achieving the scheme at one of 
the alternative sites it is considered that its detailed evaluation could only be resolved 
through a significant level of consultants evidence and expense which would not be 
reasonable given that this is not the applicants preferred choice. 

Protected Areas

The site is within close proximity to a number of European sites protected under the 
Habitats Regulations, namely: 930m of the Upper Solway Flatts Special Protection Area 
and Solway Firth Special Area of Conservation Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
and RAMSAR site, 3.48km from Silloth Dunes and Mawbray Bank and upper Solway 
Flatts & Marshes SSSI, 4.15km from South Solway Mosses Special Area of 
Conservation (SSSI) and 4km from Thornhill Moss and Meadows SSSI

There a number of intensive poultry units approved to the west of the proposed site 4 at 
Blackdyke Industrial Estate 2.40km, 1 unit at Ballydoyle 3.81km and another 2 approved 
at Abbot Farm, Blackdyke 1.54km.

Natural England have examined the details and ammonia screening results and have 
indicated that given the distance from other poultry housing within the area and 
anticipated ammonia deposition there would be no harmful effects on the SSSIs within 
the wider area.

The site is within The Solway Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Ecological Issues

A desk based ecological assessment has been submitted to accompany the application 
which has assessed species records within the locality of the proposed site.  The data 
was analysed which identifies that due to the nature of the development and proximity to 
the ecological value of the site is low in terms of vegetation and species using the site.

The report highlights that there may be some risk to potential features that could be 
used by bats if the ash trees are to be removed.  The application does not indicate that 
any of the trees would be removed and therefore officers consider that bats would not 
be affected by the proposal.

Officers consider that as no species have identified within close proximity to the site the 
proposal would not have an adverse effect on legally protected species.

The area is also identified as part of a larger area identified as an important feeding 
ground for geese and swans; however, no records of these species were identified as 
using the site itself but were recorded in the wider area.

The bird assessment recommends that works to any trees and hedges or demolition of 

Page 37



the building shall avoid the breeding season.

A further assessment of the site has been undertaken in relation to Marsh Fritillary 
Butterfly which is a recent designation within the wider area and covers this site.  The 
report establishes that none of the vegetation within the site is suitable as a main food 
plant for Marsh Fritillary. The report highlights that the habitats occurring on the site 
would have negligible value for use by Marsh Fritillary.

Landscape and Visual Impacts

The site is located in a sensitive area being within the AONB and is within the flat 
coastal plain identified as 2c within the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and 
Toolkit Lowland Landscape Character Type E: Coastal Plain within the Solway Coast 
AONB Landscape Character Assessment.   The AONB is a highly valued landscape and 
is sensitive to change.

Policy S34 of the Allerdale Local Plan outlines that “Proposals both within or adjoining 
the AONB will be expected to have regard to the Solway Coast AONB Landscape and 
Seascape Character Assessment and ensure;

a) The scale, siting or design of proposed development is appropriate to the landscape 
setting;
b) Existing landscape features are incorporated in a way which preserves or enhances 
the character of the area and mitigates the effects of development.

Planning permission for major developments within the AONB will be considered in 
accordance with national policy and will be resisted except where exceptional 
circumstances can be demonstrated.”   The guidance within S34 is reiterated under 
chapter 11 of the NPPF.

The AONB officer has commented on the potential effects on the AONB and overall the 
amended scheme still has the same impacts as the refused scheme and the Solway 
Coast AONB feels that this structure and proposed mitigation would not be 
characteristic of the area.

The application has been accompanied by a landscape assessment which indicates that 
the development would not cause any significant harm within the immediate landscape 
or wider area and wouldn’t significantly affect the landscape within the AONB. 

The landscape, was peer reviewed on behalf of the council, under the previous 
submission by Woolerton Dodwell which promoted the landscape grounds for refusal on 
the former application. However the landscape architect has now retired and therefore 
an alternative landscape architect consultant was instructed to further peer review the 
amended application including the revised siting.

The full assessment methodology and baseline of the original LVA remains unchanged 
from the initial landscape appraisal; therefore, the review of this application 
concentrated on the newly submitted information.

The peer review of the landscape report indicates that some of the viewpoints are likely 

Page 38



to under represent the potential effects of the development.  If the viewpoints were 
moved a matter of metres a better representation would have been achieved.  Also the 
report highlights that the application’s landscape assessment photographs were taken in 
the height of summer when the trees and hedges would be in full leaf cover and does 
not consider the views when it is likely to be worse in winter months.  The review 
highlights that the visualisations do not actually assist in illustrating the nature of the 
development.

The original landscape review identified that the initial landscape report has been 
amended to increase the sensitivity to high from the original medium sensitivity given 
the concerns raised in the initial review regarding the under assessment of the 
sensitivity of the landscape and visual receptors.  The review highlights that although 
some areas have been amended there is still an under representation of the level of 
effect.

The assessment highlights “In terms of landscape effects, the proposal is located in 
open countryside.  There is a clear visual separation between the site and the adjacent 
settlement of Seaville.  In order to reduce the visual effects of the development with 
open countryside, the latest mitigation measures include bunding and further tree 
planting within the open parts of the application site.  This planting is likely to hide the 
development from many views once established but the insertion of uncharacteristic 
features into a predominantly open landscape will not integrate the development into the 
landscape, as asserted by the applicant.  In fact these mitigation proposals will, in 
themselves, lead to adverse landscape effects by further enclosing parts of the Coastal 
Plain.  This reduction in openness and insertion of further development is part of the 
Coastal Plain is counter to defining key characteristics which will have notable adverse 
effects on the landscape.”

The review also highlights that the extent of the adverse effects does not to appear to be 
fully considered.

In terms of visual effects the peer review highlights that the effects have been under 
reports within the LVA partly due to view point positions.  Although the report highlights 
that there would be relatively limited visual effects there would still be some view points 
from the wider area; however, it is highlighted that the views, compared to existing, 
would remain altered and curtailed and thereby still adversely affected.

The review highlights the sensitivity from users of the national cycle way route 72 
(NCR72) which runs along the highway to the front of the site “Given that the NCR72 is 
of high sensitivity, the clear views into the site whilst adjacent and curtailment of existing 
views in the long term by mitigation proposals, there may be a medium /low magnitude 
of change leading to a substantial/moderate to moderate adverse effect.  The effect 
could be potentially significant, given the sensitivity of this nationally recognised receptor 
within a nationally designated landscape.”

The applicant’s landscape consultant has examined the previous reasons for refusal 
and indicates that they believe that the size and scale is appropriate for such an 
agricultural development and can be seen within the wider area. 

Officers do not dispute that chicken sheds by their very nature tend to be large scale 

Page 39



buildings; however, the existing large broiler units approved at Ballydoyle, Blackdye and 
Abbot Farm are not located within the AONB.  The report indicates other taller 
developments within the area such as two storey dwellings; these would not be 
comparable in terms of the overall scale to the proposal.

In terms of siting the applicants consultant indicate that there are existing buildings in 
the field

Officers highlight these are small scale and again not comparable to the proposed 
development and are not widely visible from outside the site.  Although within the 
applicants landownership the site is not close to the farm buildings.  

The applicants report states that the building would sit in the context of Seaville from 
certain viewpoints and there are trees, woodland and hedgerows within area. 

Officers consider the trees within the area are sporadic within existing hedgerows and 
there are no areas of woodland adjacent to the site. The hedges within the area are 
generally maintained however the applicant has let the hedges around the site grow.  In 
this landscape it may look out of place with excessive planting schemes and tall planting 
due to the flat landscape.  The original landscape review highlighted that the existing 
built development is seen as existing nucleated, settled units which have become part of 
the farmed Solway Coast AONB.

In terms of design the applicant’s landscape assessment contests that it is similar height 
to existing hedgerows and trees.

Officers consider the hedgerows within the area are generally below 2m in height with 
only a small number of trees within the hedgerows.  The hedge to the western boundary 
adjacent to the entrance and vehicle parking area has been left to grow higher with the 
proposal to let the remaining hedge grow higher.  The site is within a flat field system 
and even with the landscape mitigation in place the site with higher hedges and further 
planting would be noticeable as an anomaly in the open flat landscape. 

The landscape assessment also refers to pockets of woodland which the landscape 
consultant refers to are adjacent to the existing built development at Seaville.

Apart from these small pockets officers regard the wider area is mainly devoid of 
woodland with a number of sporadic trees within hedgerows.

The applicants report believes that the development would not industrialise the 
landscape and refers to the wind turbine development, masts/antennae to the north, 
large silo barns to the south and barns on the hill at Kingside. 

Officers are of the view that whilst the turbines albeit can be seen from the AONB the 
turbines themselves are not located within any protected landscapes and therefore are 
not considered to be relevant to the visual impact of the proposal but do contribute to 
industrialisation of the landscape.  The longer distance masts at Anthorn are not 
considered relevant to this proposal in terms of context with existing tall structures.

The applicants report indicates that the building would not be of an industrial scale 

Page 40



Officers to the contrary are of the opinion that at 121m x 21.63 the building is larger than 
many buildings found on industrial estates. Officers would also note that existing 
agricultural development although located within the AONB is on existing farming units 
and located close to existing buildings and not detached from the farming unit and other 
larger agricultural buildings within the wider are not located within the AONB but are well 
related to built development. 

A mitigating farm land conservation plan has been produced to support the landscaping 
proposal and provide opportunities to enhance the wildlife within the area.  The proposal 
would utilise additional planting and maintenance of existing landscape features within 
the site and provide further planting of a native variety. 

Whilst officers acknowledge the benefits of introducing features that create a more 
varied habitat and the potential to attract new wildlife is beneficial, as discussed above 
the additional planting would need to be a feature found within the immediate locality of 
the site.  The benefits of the additional planting and features are not considered to 
outweigh the harm of the overall development.

The landscape assessment believes that the development would not affect the setting of 
the AONB and the harmful visual implications have been overestimated and the harm 
would be negligible.  

Officers alternatively consider that the harm would be significant to warrant refusal of the 
application. The sites potential for harmful visual implications has risen due to its 
location within the AONB and has not been sufficiently justified to outweigh the harm 
caused and therefore would be contrary to the Allerdale Local Plan and the NPPF.

Environmental Implications

An ammonia screening assessment has been undertaken by the EA which considered 
the effects on Special Areas of Conservation (SAC, Special Protection Areas (SPA) and 
Ramsar sites within 10km of the site; SSSIs within 5km, National and Local Nature 
Reserves, ancient woodlands and Local Wildlife sites within 2km of the site.

The assessment has taken into account other poultry facilities within the locality which 
could act in combination with the proposal.  The results of the screening indicate that the 
ammonia impacts from the proposal screened out and therefore detailed modelling is 
not required.  Officers are satisfied that the cumulative issues have now been 
addressed.

The environmental health department have indicated that they have no objections to the 
proposal as the EA are the regulating authority.  The permit would cover all aspects of 
the development such as noise, odour, dust and emissions.

Officers consider that as the site would be regulated under the Environmental Permitting 
regulations the development would be sufficiently regulated not to cause harm or have 
significant impacts on nearby protected areas.

Page 41



Water Quality

The building is located within flood zone 1 and the flood risk assessment does not raise 
any concerns in relation to flooding.  In terms of drainage from the site the proposed 
method of surface water disposal is via a sustainable drainage system; it is considered 
that there is sufficient land on the holding that is within the applicants control 
surrounding the site to accommodate drainage from the site and this method of disposal 
would be acceptable.

Waste

The application indicates that the manure would be collected on site and stored until 
spread on surrounding agricultural land.

Although some details of manure management have been provided it would not be 
considered to be sufficient.  A condition requiring the details of the manure management  
could be provide to ensure a satisfactory means for the storage and disposal of waste 
from the site is achieved.

Residential Amenity

The nearest dwelling not associated with the proposal is Stone House 450m from the 
site (in farming use).  There are a number of other dwellings not used in connection with 
farming within 1km of the proposed site.   

Generally it is good practice for the collection of the broilers being undertaken in the 
dark to avoid stress to the flock which are packed into crates and subsequently into the 
articulated vehicles.  Considering the location and limited residential properties within 
the locality it is considered that there would not be a great disturbance to the residential 
amenity of any nearby properties.

There would be no negative visual implications on nearby residential properties.

Historic Environment

Red Flatt Farmhouse and adjoining barns is a Grade II Listed Building and is located 
650m from the proposed site given the distance and intervening hedgerows the setting 
of the listed buildings would not be affected by the proposal.

The Setting of Hadrian’s Wall Military Zone World Heritage Site is approximately 1.85km 
from the site and would not be affected by the development.

Access and Vehicle Movements

In terms of traffic the applicant has not provided specific traffic movements; however, it 
is anticipated that there would be similar deliveries to other sheds within the area.  The 
chicks would be delivered by wagons and based on a 49 day cycle. 

Other similar sized schemes have resulted in one articulated vehicle per 3 days 
delivering feed which would equate to 121 vehicles per year, collection at 33 vehicles 

Page 42



per year, with final collection of the chickens at the end of each cycle being 66 vehicles 
per year.

In addition to the deliveries and collections of chicks there would be 1 transit van after 
each cycle to wash the sheds out and propane delivery approximately every 2.5 months.

Generally the deliveries of food stuffs are likely to be during normal working hours, 
however, the collection of the broilers themselves may be at any time.

Access to the site would be by way of a new vehicular access point off an unclassified 
road.  The road is currently used to access a small number of dwellings, farms and 
surrounding agricultural land and is on the national cycle route. No alterations have 
been proposed to the existing field access.  The application demonstrates that the 
proposed new access would be suitable for arctic lorries.

The vehicles would access the main highway by a small stretch of unclassified road 
640m and then enters onto the B5302 which connects Silloth with Wigton.

Very little supporting information is provided in terms of traffic generation and on the 
previous application the highways authority based their assumptions on similar previous 
applications (officers consider that these assumptions are still relevant to this 
application), i.e. there is usually a bulk feed delivery fortnightly (generally by 30TGVW, 8 
wheeled rigid lorries) and 15m long artic vehicles to take birds away. Other movements 
tend to be LGV type vehicles to deliver chicks, minor consumables, maintenance and 
husbandry staff – usually circa 20 vehicle movements per week.  There are also 
agricultural vehicles to remove slurry and waste to spread on land. On this basis the 
highways authority has considered the traffic will not have a significant impact on the 
local road network. But highlight that clearly there will be significant traffic during the 
construction phase and this could be dealt with by condition through the council’s 
construction Design and Management Statement Condition and also indicate that the 
new access internal turning/servicing areas must be substantially met prior to the 
construction of the shed commencing.

The application advises that there would be two passing places installed in the highway 
verge on the unclassified road between the site and the main road.

Officers consider that the previous highway reason for refusal on the original application 
has been addressed within the resubmission.

Other Issues

The applicant has provided a further statement indicating that they do not believe the 
parish have submitted a similar response to the original application and have not 
sufficiently considered the revised submission.  Officers would comment that the Parish 
have access to all documents and have based their opinions on the information 
available.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act there are local financial 

Page 43



considerations with the potential for increased business rates revenue. It is not however 
considered that this outweighs the adverse environmental impacts of the proposal 
identified in this report.

Conclusion

The merits of the proposal represent a judgement towards the economic needs of the 
applicants farming business against its environmental impact on the national landscape 
designation to which his holding falls within. Member’s consideration should also focus 
as to whether the amended scheme addresses and overcomes the grounds of refusal of 
the earlier application for the same development.

Officers accept the amended scheme has satisfactorily resolved the highway concerns.

However, albeit the development is agriculture in nature, the planning policies relating to 
protecting this sensitive landscape are equally applicable to any form and type of 
inappropriate development.

The applicant’s landscape evidence has been independently assessed via a qualified 
peer review and significant weight is attached to its findings. Members are therefore 
required to examine and establish a view as to the extent of any harm, and if so, is it 
outweighed by the economic needs of the applicant. In association this needs to 
account for whether as a major development it would in terms of the AONB planning 
policy constitute a “exceptional circumstance” 

Officers consider the large scale of the agricultural building results in the landscape 
grounds of refusal continuing to prevail and that the mitigation measures offered by the 
applicant do not significantly reduce the harm to its locality in the AONB. 

Officers consider that the harmful effects on the landscape and AONB do not outweigh 
the benefits arising out of the proposal and therefore recommend that the application is 
refused.

Page 44



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The proposed development, by reason of its size, siting and design, 
would form a visually obtrusive feature which would detract from the 
rural character and appearance of the surrounding rural area and the 
character and setting of the Solway Coast designated Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty.  The proposal is therefore contrary to 
polices S4, S33, S34, DM5 and DM6 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) 
July 2014 and paragraphs 109, 115 and 116 the NPPF.

Proactive Statement

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  However, 
the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been possible to negotiate a 
satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly identified within the 
reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.

Notes to Applicant:

Page 45



Location of application proposal 

P
age 46



Location of proposal showing surround properties

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48


	Agenda
	4 2/2017/0382 - Solway Holiday Village, Skinburness Drive, Silloth - Extension to exiting residential caravan park for the siting of 42 residential caravans
	5 2/2017/0334 - Land Longcroft House, Grayson Green, High Harrington, Workington
	6 2/2017/0247 - Fir Tree Farm, Seaville, Silloth - Erection of broiler unit and associated infrastructure (resubmission)

